
 

 

FAIRFIELD CITY COUNCIL  
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

FAIRFIELD MUNICIPAL BUILDING 
5350 PLEASANT AVENUE 

FAIRFIELD, OHIO  45014 
 

Monday, July 14, 2014        7:00 PM 
 
 
MAYOR………………………………….STEVE MILLER    COUNCILMEMBER AT-LARGE…CHAD OBERSON 
COUNCILMEMBER 1ST WARD……….ADAM B. JONES    COUNCILMEMBER AT-LARGE…MIKE SNYDER 
COUNCILMEMBER 2ND WARD………MARTY JUDD    COUNCILMEMBER AT-LARGE…BILL WOESTE 
COUNCILMEMBER 3RD WARD………DEBBIE PENNINGTON   CITY MANAGER………………….ARTHUR E. PIZZANO 
COUNCILMEMBER 4TH WARD………TERRY SENGER    CLERK OF COUNCIL…………….ALISHA WILSON 

LAW DIRECTOR………………….JOHN H. CLEMMONS 
 
Guidelines for Citizen Comments: Thank you for your interest and participation in city government.  Fairfield City Council’s Guidelines for 
Citizen Comments describe the rules for addressing City Council. The guidelines are posted in the Council Chambers. 
 
ADA Notice:  The City of Fairfield is pleased to provide accommodations to disabled individuals or groups and encourage full participation in 
city government.  Should special accommodations be required, please contact the Clerk of Council at 867-5383 at least 48 hours in advance of the 
meeting. 

 
1. Call to Order 
 
2. Prayer/Pledge of Allegiance 
 
3. Roll Call 
 
4. Agenda Modifications 
 
5. Executive Session Requests 
 
6. Public Hearing(s) 

 
a) 2015 Tax Budget Hearing 

 
7. Special Presentations and Citizen Comments 

 
a) Robert J. Humbert – Proclamation in Appreciation 
b) Business Spotlight – Mr. Bart Sturm, General Manager - Performance Toyota    

 
8. Mayor/Council Reports 

 
9. Approval of Minutes 

 
a) Regular Meeting Minutes of  June 9, 2014 

 
10. OLD BUSINESS  
 
11.  NEW BUSINESS 
 
 (A)  PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE 
  Adam Jones, Chairman; Marty Judd, Vice Chairman, Terry Senger, Member 
 

(1) Simple Motion: Motion to approve liquor permit application in the name of Jeffrey B. McCleese, DBA 
Panache Fashions in Hair LLC, 5490 Dixie Hwy, Fairfield, OH 45014. (Permit Classes: D1 & D2) 
 

(2) Simple Motion: Motion to approve liquor permit application in the name of DVSB LLC DBA Locker Room, 
3152 Lighthouse Dr., Fairfield, OH 45014. (Permit Classes: D1, D2, D3, D3A, D6) 

 



Page 2  
Agenda 

Regular Meeting 
July 14, 2014 

 

 

 
(B) DEVELOPMENT SERVICES COMMITTEE 

Bill Woeste, Chairman; Adam Jones, Vice Chairman, Mike Snyder, Member 
 
(1)  Resolution approving the Ward Boundary Review Commission report and recommendation to make no 
      changes to the boundaries of the four wards. 
 

• Motion – Read by Title Only (Optional) 
• Resolution – First Reading 

 
(2) Ordinance to authorize the City Manager to execute a Community Reinvestment Area Agreement and a 

Community Reinvestment Area Compensation Agreement, which will provide property tax incentives for 
Machintek Corporation and 410 Properties, Ltd. for the construction of an addition to an office and 
manufacturing facility on Port Union Road and declaring an emergency. 

 
• Motion – Read by Title Only (Optional) 
• Ordinance – First Reading 
• Motion – Suspend Second and Third Readings 
• Motion – Adoption 

 
 (C) PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE 

 Chad Oberson, Chairman; Mike Snyder, Vice Chairman, Bill Woeste, Member 
 

(1) Ordinance to authorize the City Manager to enter into a contract with Mount Pleasant Blacktopping for the 
purchase of asphalt materials and declaring an emergency. 
 

• Motion – Read by Title Only (Optional) 
• Ordinance – First Reading 
• Motion – Suspend Second and Third Readings 
• Motion – Adoption 

 
(2) Ordinance to authorize the City Manager to enter into a contract with R. A. Miller Construction Co., Inc. to 

replace curb ramps in the Redwood, Fenwick and Walter Vicinity and declaring an emergency. 
 

• Motion – Read by Title Only (Optional) 
• Ordinance – First Reading 
• Motion – Suspend Second and Third Readings 
• Motion – Adoption 

     
(3) Ordinance to authorize the City Manager to enter into a contract with Henderson Truck Equipment to outfit 

a 2015 Single Axle Dump Truck Unit #37.  
 

• Motion – Read by Title Only (Optional) 
• Ordinance – First Reading 
• Motion – Suspend Second and Third Readings 
• Motion – Adoption 

 
(4) Ordinance to authorize the City Manager to enter into a contract with R. A. Miller Construction Co., Inc. to 

replace existing drywells in the Vinnedge, Walter and Van Cleves Vicinity and declaring an emergency. 
 

• Motion – Read by Title Only (Optional) 
• Ordinance – First Reading 
• Motion – Suspend Second and Third Readings 
• Motion – Adoption 

 



Page 3  
Agenda 

Regular Meeting 
July 14, 2014 

 

 

 
(D)  PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMITTEE         

Marty Judd, Chairman; Chad Oberson, Vice Chairman, Adam Jones, Member 
 

(1) Ordinance to amend sections 921.03, 921.04 and 921.06 and add a new section 921.14 relative to water 
system requirements of Ordinance No. 166-84, the Codified Ordinances of Fairfield, Ohio. 

    
• Motion – Read by Title Only (Optional) 
• Ordinance – First Reading 

 
(E) FINANCE & BUDGET COMMITTEE 

Terry Senger, Chairman; Debbie Pennington, Vice Chairman, Chad Oberson, Member 
 

(1) Ordinance to amend Ordinance No. 109-13 entitled “An Ordinance to make estimated appropriations for the 
expenses and other expenditures of the City of Fairfield, Ohio, during a period beginning January 1, 2014, 
and ending December 31, 2014.” 
 

• Motion – Read by Title Only (Optional) 
• Ordinance – First Reading 
• Motion – Suspend Second and Third Readings 
• Motion – Adoption 

 
(2) Resolution adopting the tax budget of the City of Fairfield, Ohio, for the fiscal year beginning January 1, 

2015 and submitting the same to the Butler County Auditor and declaring an emergency. 
 

• Motion – Read by Title Only (Optional) 
• Resolution – First Reading 
• Motion – Suspend Second and Third Readings 
• Motion – Adoption 

 
(3) Ordinance to authorize the City Manager to enter into an agreement with CDW-G for the purchase of 

replacement computer workstations and related equipment for city users. 
 

• Motion – Read by Title Only (Optional) 
• Ordinance – First Reading 
• Motion – Suspend Second and Third Readings 
• Motion – Adoption 

 
(4) Ordinance to authorize the City Manager to enter into an agreement with Digital Visions for the 

replacement, additions and upgrades to the City’s security camera network and declaring an emergency. 
 

• Motion – Read by Title Only (Optional) 
• Ordinance – First Reading 
• Motion – Suspend Second and Third Readings 
• Motion – Adoption 

 
(5) Contractual Appropriations – $45,000 for curb ramp replacement, $84,231 to outfit a 2015 dump truck for 

Public Works, $75,000 to replace drywells, $66,000 for computer workstations and related equipment, 
$224,400 for replacement, additions and upgrades to the City’s security camera network, $55,000 for asphalt 
restoration from water system repairs. 
 

• Motion – Read by Title Only (Optional) 
• Ordinance – First Reading 
• Motion – Suspend Second and Third Readings 
• Motion – Adoption 



Page 4  
Agenda 

Regular Meeting 
July 14, 2014 

 

 

 
(6) Non-Contractual Appropriations - $49,533 for window replacement and improvements at Elisha Morgan 

Mansion, $48,555 for window and metal cladding replacement at Fire Headquarters, $27,000 for various 
repairs at the Municipal and Municipal Annex Buildings, $24,000 for overlay/sealing/striping of parking lots 
and tennis courts for the Parks Department, $23,837.03 to replace pistols for the Police Department, $20,000 
for software for the City website and building permit software for the Development Services Department, 
$16,000 for drainage improvements at various locations, $25,000 for seasonal and special event banners for 
the Town Center and Gilmore Rd., $14,650 for a portable changeable message sign, $11,680 for purchase 
and fabrication of an automatic weed sprayer for the Street Division, $10,000 for fire hose and related 
equipment, $5,000 for an additional time clock for North Trace Golf and Aquatic Center, $2,000 for a 
replacement operations server for Police records and Dispatch, $12,400 for manhole casting adjustments, 
$10,000 for painting the Broadview Pump Station roof structure, $7,100 for concrete curb/cart path repairs 
at Fairfield Greens Golf Course/South Trace, $17,800 for one top dresser unit and one turf roller for the Golf 
Maintenance Division. 

 
• Motion – Read by Title Only (Optional) 
• Ordinance – First Reading 
• Motion – Suspend Second and Third Readings 
• Motion – Adoption 

 
12. Meeting Schedule 

Monday, August 11 Regular Meeting, 7:00 p.m. 
Monday, September 8 Regular Meeting, 7:00 p.m. 
Monday, September 22 Regular Meeting, 7:00 p.m. 
 

13. Executive Session of Council (if needed) 
 

14. Adjournment 

































































































































































EXHIBIT “A” 
 
CHAPTER 921 – WATER 
 
921.03 APPLICATION FOR CONNECTION. 

(a)  General Requirements. 
(1)  Application for a water service branch and water meter service must be 

made by a licensed person. Application for branch service must be made 
concurrently with request for meter service. A tap fee shall be paid at the 
time of application. 

(2)  No water branch service shall be permitted to any property outside the 
City's corporate limits without approval of Council. 

(b)  Installation of Service Branch. All service branches shall be installed at the cost of 
the property owner by a licensed person. All water service branches shall be taken directly from 
a public water main. 

(c)  Requirements of Service Branches and Meters. The Public Utilities Director shall 
establish minimum size requirements for service branches and meters. 

(d)  Water Branches Not to be Laid in Sewer Trench. No water service branch is to be 
laid  in  the same  trench with a sewer  line.  In extreme cases, shelving will be permitted  if  the 
shelf is eighteen inches wide and the water service pipe is so staked so as to prevent its slipping 
into the sewer trench. 

(e)   Replacement or Repair of Service Branches. Where a service branch is installed, 
the Water Division shall repair and maintain it or replace it with a branch of the same size from 
the main to and including the curb stop [valve if the valve is outside] WITHIN the right of way 
or  to  the  limits of  the  right of way  if  the valve  is  [inside] OUTSIDE OF  the  right of way. The 
property owner  is responsible for maintaining the BALANCE OF THE service branch [from   the 
edge of the right of way to the ultimate point of use], WITH THE EXCEPTION OF THE WATER 
METER, TO ASSURE A SAFE WATER SUPPLY AND  IN A STRUCTURAL CONDITION THAT WILL 
PERMIT WATER  SERVICE WITHOUT  LEAKAGE.    COMPLETE  REPLACEMENT MUST  BE MADE 
WHERE  IT  IS DETERMINED BY THE PUBLIC UTILITY DIRECTOR OR DESIGNEE THAT A  LINE  IS 
LEAKING OR OTHERWISE DEFECTIVE.  FAILURE BY THE OWNER TO MAKE TIMELY REPAIRS TO 
OR REPLACEMENT OF THE SERVICE LINE WILL RESULT IN THE TERMINATION OR REFUSAL OF 
WATER SERVICE. (Ord. 20‐87. Passed 2‐23‐87.) 

(f)  REPLACEMENT OF WATER METER/REPAIR OF ASSOCIATED WATER LINE.     THE 
CITY HAS  THE RIGHT  TO   REPLACE OR REQUIRE REPLACEMENT OF ANY WATER METER AS 
DEEMED NECESSARY TO PREVENT LEAKS OR OTHERWISE PROTECT THE WATER SUPPLY.  THE 
CITY SHALL NOT BE RESPONSIBLE FOR BREAKAGE OF PIPES OR VALVES OCCURRING DURING 
REPLACEMENT OR  INSTALLATION OF METERS WHEN  SUCH  BREAKAGE  IS DUE  TO OLD OR 
FAULTY  PLUMBING.    THE  CITY MAY  TERMINATE OR  REFUSE WATER  SERVICE  IF  A METER 
CANNOT  BE  INSTALLED  OR  REPLACED  APPROPRIATELY  DUE  TO  THE  CONDITION  OF  THE 
WATER LINE ADJACENT TO THE METER. 

(f) (g)  Expansion and Water Tap Fees. Expansion fees for properties located inside the 
corporate  limits  of  the  City  are  hereby  established  in  accordance with Appendix  A which  is 



attached to Ordinance 53‐91 and  incorporated herein as Appendix A. No building permit shall 
be  issued  until  a water  expansion  fee  is  paid. Water  expansion  fees  for  properties  located 
outside  the corporate  limits of  the City shall be one hundred and  fifty percent  (150%) of  the 
amounts  stated  in Appendix A. A  tap  fee  shall be paid at  the  time of application by anyone 
tapping  into  the City's water system. The  tap  fee  is  for payment of materials supplied by  the 
City for the physical service connection at the public water main. The cost of materials shall be 
1.5 times the City's cost of purchasing the material. (Ord. 52‐95. Passed 5‐8‐95.) 

 
921.04     LICENSE; BONDING REQUIREMENTS 

(a)  License.   Any person, firm or corporation working on any part of the City’s water 
distribution  system,  including water  service  lines and water meters, must  first obtain a valid 
water  service  license  issued  and  signed  by  the  Public Utilities Director  or  his/her  designee.  
Application  for  such  license  shall  be made  to  the  Public  [Works]  UTILITIES  Director,  and  a 
license fee of thirty dollars ($30.00) shall accompany the application.  The license shall be valid 
within the calendar year that it was issued, and must be renewed cyclical on January 1st with an 
additional  fee  paid  each  year.   The  license  applicant  shall  be  required  to  prove  to  the 
satisfaction  of  the  Public  Utilities  Director  and  City  Manager  that  he/she  possesses  the 
qualifications necessary for working on the City’s water distribution system.  The applicant may 
be required to pass a test as to competency under the bylaws and regulations adopted by the 
City of Fairfield.  A license may be revoked by the Public Utilities Director if the licensee violates 
any  laws,  ordinances,  bylaws  and  regulations  governing work  on  the  City water  distribution 
system.  (Ord. 128‐07.  Passed 10‐9‐07.) 
 
921.06 PERMITS FOR TEMPORARY WATER USE. 
Where water is required for temporary use, application shall be made to the Water Division for 
a special permit to use water from a fire hydrant or other available source. All arrangements for 
temporary water use shall be approved by the Superintendent. 

(a)  Special Meters. 
(1)  The  Superintendent  is  authorized  to  require  the use of  a  special water 

meter to register water consumed for a temporary use. The meter will, in 
such  cases,  be  furnished  by  the Division without  charge  except  that  a 
deposit may  be  required. Rates  for  special meter water  use  shall  be  a 
minimum of ten dollars ($10.00) for the first 3,000 gallons. Water used in 
excess  of  3,000  gallons  will  be  charged  at  the  normal 
residential/commercial rate. 

[(b)  Charge for Unmetered Water. Unmetered water shall be paid for on the basis of 
meter rates, according to the estimated amount used or to be used. The minimum charge shall 
be fifteen dollars ($15.00). The Superintendent shall be authorized to provide, by rule, for the 
method of fixing charges in the case of particular types of unmetered uses. Construction water 
for use at a building site operating under a valid building permit shall be charged at a rate of 
three times the minimum monthly water bill for the specified meter size for each meter in the 
building. Construction water  shall  be  authorized  for  three months  and may  be  extended  by 
written authorization of the Superintendent.] 

 



[(c)]    (b) Use of Water Without a Permit. No person,  firm or  corporation  shall use or 
make a connection to use water from a fire hydrant or other available source unless a properly 
authorized temporary use permit is issued by the Water Division. The Superintendent is hereby 
authorized to remove and confiscate any hose or connection found attached to a fire hydrant 
or  other  available  source  of  water  for  which  no  temporary  use  permit  has  been  issued. 
(Ord. 20‐87. Passed 2‐23‐87.) 
 
921.14   TAMPERING WITH WATER DIVISION EQUIPMENT.  

(a)  NO PERSON SHALL KNOWINGLY, WITHOUT CONSENT OF THE CITY PUBLIC 
UTILITIES DIRECTOR OR DESIGNEE: 
    (1)  INTERFERE WITH, DAMAGE, OR BY‐PASS A WATER METER OR 

RELATED ACCESSORY. 
    (2)  TURN ON A WATER SERVICE THAT HAS BEEN TURNED OFF AT 

THE CURB STOP OR WITH A LOCK OUT AT THE METER BY THE 
CITY TO DISCONTINUE SERVICE TO THE PREMISES. 

    (3)   CONNECT TO A FIRE HYDRANT FOR PURPOSES OTHER THAN FIRE 
FIGHTING, HYDRANT MAINTENANCE, OR OTHER ACTIVITIES.  

    (4)   OPEN, CLOSE, ADJUST OR INTERFERE WITH A FIRE HYDRANT, 
VALVE, CURB STOP, TANK, METERS, PIPES, MAINS, OR OTHER 
COMPONENTS OF THE WATER SYSTEM OWNED BY THE CITY.  

    (5)   TAP, SEVER, OPEN OR MAKE UNAUTHORIZED CONNECTIONS 
WITH A MAIN OR PIPE USED OR INTENDED FOR THE 
TRANSMISSION OF WATER. 

IN A PROSECUTION UNDER SUBSECTION (1) OR (2) HEREOF, PROOF THAT A METER OR CURB 
STOP  HAS  BEEN  TAMPERED WITH  IS  PRIMA‐FACIE  EVIDENCE  THAT  THE  PERSON WHO  IS 
OBLIGED  TO  PAY  FOR  THE  SERVICE  RENDERED  THROUGH  THE METER  AT  THE  TIME  THE 
TAMPERING OCCURRED HAS CAUSED THE TAMPERING.  
(Ord. 116‐11. Passed 11‐14‐11). 
 
 
 



ORDINANCE NO.  ____________ 
 

ORDINANCE TO AMEND SECTIONS 921.03, 921.04 AND 921.06 AND 
ADD  A  NEW  SECTION  921.14  RELATIVE  TO  WATER  SYSTEM 
REQUIREMENTS  OF  ORDINANCE  NO.  166‐84,  THE  CODIFIED 
ORDINANCES OF FAIRFIELD, OHIO. 

 
BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Fairfield, Ohio, that: 

 
Section 1.  Sections 921.03, 921.04  and 921.06  are hereby  amended  and  a new  Section 

921.14 is hereby added relative to water system requirements of Ordinance No. 
166‐84, The Codified Ordinances of Fairfield, Ohio, to read as follows: 

 
    See attached Exhibit “A” which is incorporated herein by reference. 
 
Section 2.  This Ordinance shall take effect at the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
Passed  ______________________ 

 
_____________________________________ 
Mayor’s Approval 

Posted  ______________________ 
 

   

First Reading  ______________________ 
 

Rules Suspended  ______________________

Second Reading  ______________________ 
 

   

Third Reading  ______________________ 
 

   

ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________ 
Clerk of Council 

   

 
This is to certify that this Ordinance has been duly published by posting and summary 

publication as provided by Charter. 
___________________________________ 
Clerk of Council 

 
Active Clients\City of Fairfield\Ordinances\2014\Codified Ordinance Chapter 921 ‐ Ord 



























































































































































































































































ORDINANCE NO. __________                          
 

ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE NO. 109‐13 ENTITLED “AN 
ORDINANCE  TO MAKE  ESTIMATED  APPROPRIATIONS  FOR  THE 
EXPENSES AND OTHER EXPENDITURES OF THE CITY OF FAIRFIELD, 
OHIO,  DURING  A  PERIOD  BEGINNING  JANUARY  1,  2014,  AND 
ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2014.” 

 
BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Fairfield, Ohio, that: 

 
Section 1.  Ordinance No. 109‐13, the 2014 Appropriation Ordinance, is hereby amended in 

the following respects: 
 

From:  Unappropriated Capital Improvement Fund  $252,556 
To:  40216025‐252000 Improvements Other Than Building  $149,388 

(Elisha Morgan Mansion Improvements ($49,533);  
Replacement Windows at Fire Headquarters ($48,555);  
Municipal Building and Annex Improvements ($27,300); 
Overlay/Sealing Parking Lots ($24,000)) 

To:  40216025‐253400 Computer Equipment  $22,000 
(Permit Software for Development Services ($20,000); 
Police Server ($2,000) 

To:  40216025‐252500 Drainage Improvements  $16,000 
(Drainage Improvements along Pleasant Run Creek) 

To:  40216025‐253200 Capital Equipment  $65,168 
(Replacement Pistols ($23,838); Portable Changeable 
Message Sign ($14,650);  Automatic Weed Sprayer 
($11,680);  Fire Hose and Related Equipment 
($10,000); Electronic Time Clock for Park Facility 
($5,000)) 

From: 
 

Unappropriated Sewer Replacement & Improvement 
Fund 

$12,400 

To:  62316025‐252000 Improvements Other Than Building  $12,400 
(Manhole Castings) 

From:  Unappropriated Sewer Surplus Fund  $10,000 
To:  62416025‐252000 Improvements Other Than Building  $10,000 

(Painting of Broadview Pump Station Roof) 



From:  Unappropriated General Fund   $25,000 
To:  10012523‐233900 Other Professional Services  $21,086 

(Design and Purchase of Banners) 

To:  10015023‐233900 Other Professional Services  $3,914 
(Design and Purchase of Banners) 

From:  Unappropriated Recreational Facilities Fund  $24,900 
To:  64052025‐252000 Improvements Other Than Building  $7,100 

(Replace Curbs and Repair Cart Paths at South Trace 
Golf Course) 

To:  64052025‐253200 Capital Equipment  $17,800 
(Replace Equipment for Golf Maintenance Division) 

 
Section 2.  This Ordinance shall take effect at the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
Passed  _______________________ _______________________________________

Mayor’s Approval 
Posted  _______________________

 
   

First Reading  _______________________
 

Rules Suspended  ______________________
 

Second Reading  _______________________
 

   

Third Reading  _______________________
 

   

ATTEST: 
 
______________________________________
Clerk of Council 

   

 
This is to certify that this Ordinance has been duly published by posting and summary 

publication as provided by Charter. 
 
                                                                    

              Clerk of Council 
 
Active Clients\City of Fairfield\Ordinances\2014\Non Contractual 7‐14 ‐ Ord 


	Agenda
	CM Briefing Agenda
	Public Hearing Notice - 2015 Tax Budget Hearing
	Minutes-June 9, 2014
	New Business
	Public Safety Committee-Liquor Permit Application-Panache Fashions in Hair
	Public Safety Committee-Liquor Permit Application-Locker Room
	Development Services Committee - Ward Boundary Review
	Development Services Committee-Community Reinvestment Area Agreement
	Public Works Committee-Mount Pleasant Blacktopping Asphalt Purchase
	Public Works Committee-Redwood/Fenwick/Walter Vicinity Curb Ramp Replacement
	Public Works Committee-Henderson Truck Equipment Dump Truck
	Public Works Committee-Drywell Replacement Vinnedge/Walter/Van Cleves Vicinity
	Public Utilities Committee-Water Ordinance Amendment
	Finance & Budget Committee-Appropriations to Reconcile Accounts
	Finance & Budget Committee-2015 Tax Budget
	Finance & Budget Committee-CDW-G Replacement Computer Workstations 
	Finance & Budget Committee-Digital Visions Security Camera  Updates
	Finance & Budget Committee-Contractual Appropriations
	Finance & Budget Committee-Non-Contractual Appropriations



